
 

 
Members are summoned to attend this meeting 

 
Kim Wright 
Chief Executive 
Lewisham Town Hall  
Catford 
London SE6 4RU 
Date: Monday, 1 February 2021 

 

 

 
 

The public are welcome to attend our committee meetings, however occasionally committees may have to consider some 
business in private.  Copies of reports can be made available in additional formats on request. 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
BUSINESS PANEL 

 

Date: TUESDAY, 9 FEBRUARY 2021 at 7.05 pm 
 

Remote: Via Microsoft Teams 
Members of the public are welcome to observe the meeting via the Council’s 
website on www.lewisham.gov.uk 

 
Enquiries to:  Jasmine Kassim 
Telephone:    0208 314 8577 (direct line) 
Email:   Jasmine.Kassim@lewisham.gov.uk 
 
MEMBERS 
 

 

Councillor Bill Brown Chair of Overview & Scrutiny Committee L 

Councillor Sophie Davis Deputy Chair L 

Councillor Peter Bernards Chair of Housing Select Committee L 

Councillor Juliet Campbell Chair of Safer Stronger Communities Select 
Committee 

L 

Councillor Patrick Codd Chair of Public Accounts Select Committee L 

Councillor Liam Curran Chair of Sustainable Development Select Committee Labour 
Co-op 

Councillor Joan Millbank Labour Group Representative L 

Councillor Kim Powell Labour Group Representative L 

Councillor John Muldoon Chair of Healthier Communities Select Committee Labour 
Co-op 

Councillor Luke Sorba Chair Children and Young People Select Committee L 

Public Document Pack

http://www.lewisham.gov.uk/


 

 

 

 

The public are welcome to attend our committee meetings, however occasionally committees may have to 
consider some business in private.  Copies of reports can be made available in additional formats on request. 

 

 

 ORDER OF BUSINESS – PART 1 AGENDA  

 

Item 
No 

 Page 
No.s 

1.   Declarations of Interests 
 

1 - 4 

2.   Decisions Made by Mayor & Cabinet on 3 February 2021 - open session 
 

5 - 12 

   



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\5\5\7\ai00026755\$asfuwesh.doc 

 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel 

 
 
 
1 Personal interests 
 

There are three types of personal interest referred to in the Council’s Member 
Code of Conduct:-  

 
(1)  Disclosable pecuniary interests 
(2)  Other registerable interests 
(3)  Non-registerable interests 
 

 
2 Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined by regulation as:- 
 
(a) Employment, trade, profession or vocation of a relevant person* for profit or 

gain 
 
(b) Sponsorship –payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than 

by the Council) within the 12 months prior to giving notice for inclusion in the 
register in respect of expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a 
member or towards your election expenses (including payment or financial 
benefit  from a Trade Union). 

 
(c)  Undischarged contracts between a relevant person* (or a firm in which they 

are a partner or a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the 
securities of which they have a beneficial interest) and the Council for goods, 
services or works. 

Outline and recommendations 

Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item(s) of the 
agenda 

Declaration of Interest 
 

Date: 9 February 2021 
Key decision: No  
Class: Part 1  
Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: Chief Executive / Head of Business and Committee 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\5\5\7\ai00026755\$asfuwesh.doc 

 

 
(d)  Beneficial interests in land in the borough. 
 
(e)  Licence to occupy land in the borough for one month or more. 
 
(f)   Corporate tenancies – any tenancy, where to the member’s knowledge, the 

Council is landlord and the tenant is a firm in which the relevant person* is a 
partner, a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of 
which they have a beneficial interest.   

 
(g)   Beneficial interest in securities of a body where:- 
 

(a)  that body to the member’s knowledge has a place of business or land 
in the borough; and  

 
 (b)  either 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 1/100 of 
the total issued share capital of that body; or 

 
 (ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 

nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person* has a beneficial interest exceeds 1/100 of the total issued 
share capital of that class. 

 
*A relevant person is the member, their spouse or civil partner, or a person with 
whom they live as spouse or civil partner.  

 
(3)  Other registerable interests 

 
The Lewisham Member Code of Conduct requires members also to register 
the following interests:- 

 
(a) Membership or position of control or management in a body to which 

you were appointed or nominated by the Council 
 

(b) Any body exercising functions of a public nature or directed to 
charitable purposes , or whose principal purposes include the influence 
of public opinion or policy, including any political party 

 
(c) Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an 

estimated value of at least £25 
 
(4) Non registerable interests 

 
Occasions may arise when a matter under consideration would or would be 
likely to affect the wellbeing of a member, their family, friend or close 
associate more than it would affect the wellbeing of those in the local area 
generally, but which is not required to be registered in the Register of 
Members’ Interests (for example a matter concerning the closure of a school 
at which a Member’s child attends).  

Page 2



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\5\5\7\ai00026755\$asfuwesh.doc 

 

(5)  Declaration and Impact of interest on members’ participation 
 
 (a)  Where a member has any registerable interest in a matter and they are 

present at a meeting at which that matter is to be discussed, they must 
declare the nature of the interest at the earliest opportunity and in any 
event before the matter is considered.  The declaration will be recorded 
in the minutes of the meeting. If the matter is a disclosable pecuniary 
interest the member must take not part in consideration of the matter 
and withdraw from the room before it is considered.  They must not 
seek improperly to influence the decision in any way. Failure to 
declare such an interest which has not already been entered in the 
Register of Members’ Interests, or participation where such an 
interest exists, is liable to prosecution and on conviction carries a 
fine of up to £5000  
 

 (b)  Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a 
disclosable pecuniary interest they must still declare the nature of the 
interest to the meeting at the earliest opportunity and in any event 
before the matter is considered, but they may stay in the room, 
participate in consideration of the matter and vote on it unless 
paragraph (c) below applies. 
 

(c) Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a 
disclosable pecuniary interest, the member must consider whether a 
reasonable member of the public in possession of the facts would think 
that their interest is so significant that it would be likely to impair the 
member’s judgement of the public interest.  If so, the member must 
withdraw and take no part in consideration of the matter nor seek to 
influence the outcome improperly. 

 
 (d)  If a non-registerable interest arises which affects the wellbeing of a 

member, their, family, friend or close associate more than it would 
affect those in the local area generally, then the provisions relating to 
the declarations of interest and withdrawal apply as if it were a 
registerable interest.   

 
(e) Decisions relating to declarations of interests are for the member’s 

personal judgement, though in cases of doubt they may wish to seek 
the advice of the Monitoring Officer. 

 
(6)   Sensitive information  

 
There are special provisions relating to sensitive interests.  These are 
interests the disclosure of which would be likely to expose the member to risk 
of violence or intimidation where the Monitoring Officer has agreed that such 
interest need not be registered.  Members with such an interest are referred to 
the Code and advised to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance. 

Page 3



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\5\5\7\ai00026755\$asfuwesh.doc 

 

 
(7) Exempt categories 
 

There are exemptions to these provisions allowing members to participate in 
decisions notwithstanding interests that would otherwise prevent them doing 
so.  These include:- 

 
(a) Housing – holding a tenancy or lease with the Council unless the 

matter relates to your particular tenancy or lease; (subject to arrears 
exception) 

(b)  School meals, school transport and travelling expenses; if you are a 
parent or guardian of a child in full time education, or a school governor 
unless the matter relates particularly to the school your child attends or 
of which you are a governor;  

(c)   Statutory sick pay; if you are in receipt 
(d)  Allowances, payment or indemnity for members  
(e)  Ceremonial honours for members 
(f)   Setting Council Tax or precept (subject to arrears exception) 

 

Page 4



 

Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel 

 
 

 

1. Recommendation 
 
To consider decisions taken by the Mayor on 3 February 2021, which will 
come in to force on 10 February 2021 unless called in by the Overview & 
Scrutiny Business Panel on 9 February 2021. 
 

2. Background 
 

2.1 The Mayor and Cabinet considered the following decisions 3 February 2021: 
 
i. Budget Cuts 
ii. Council Budget 2021-2022 

 
 

2.2 The notice of the decision in respect of this report is attached below. 
 
2.3 Under the provisions of Standing Orders Part IV E 14, Members may call in 

an executive decision within 7 days.  If this report is not called in, the 
decisions will come into force on 10 February 2021. 

Outline and recommendations 

Members are asked to consider decisions taken at a meeting of                             
the Mayor and Cabinet held on 3 February 2021 in open session 

Decisions made by Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Date: 9 February 2021 
Key decision: Yes 
Class: Part 1  
Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: Chief Executive / Head of Business and Committee 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Mayor and Cabinet made the following decisions on February 3 2021.  All 
recommendations shown were agreed by a 10-0 vote of voting members in 
attendance. 
 
The decisions will become effective on February 10 2021, unless called in by 
the Overview & Scrutiny Business Panel on February 9 2021. 
 
1. Budget Cuts 
 

Having considered an officer report, and presentations by the Cabinet 
Member for Finance and Resources, Councillor Amanda De Ryk, the 
Chair of the Public Accounts Select Committee, Councillor Pat Codd 
and by Dr Tony O’Sullivan of the Save Lewisham Hospital Campaign, 
the Mayor and Cabinet agreed in a recorded vote that: 

 
(1) following a review the cuts proposals presented in Section 7 and 

Appendices 2 to 7, totalling £12.965m, the following proposals be 
approved; 

(2) Authorise officers to carry out consultations where staff consultation 
is necessary in relation to proposals: A-09, A-11, A-13, C-10, C-11, 
C-30, and F-15A and delegate the decision to the relevant 
Executive Director for the service concerned.  

(3) Authorise officers to carry out consultations where public 
consultation is necessary in relation to proposals:, B-11, C-12, C-
13, C-15, C-22, C-26, C-28, F-20, F-22 and F-24, and ask officers 
to report back to the Mayor with the outcome, for a decision to be 
made. This includes the proposal on NHS CAMHS with work to be 
done on a contingency arrangement alongside the consultation, and 
brought forward in a future report to Mayor and Cabinet. 

(4) Agree that where no consultation is required, agree the following 
proposals: A-01A, A-10, A-12, A-14, A-16, A-17, A-18, B-12, B-13, 
C-09, C-14, C-16, C-17, C-21, C-23, C-24, C-29, D-09, E-01A, E-
08A, E-11, F-19, F-21, and F-23  

 

(2) the comments of the Public Accounts Select Committee of the 2 

NOTICE OF DECISIONS MADE BY 
THE MAYOR & CABINET  

 

 

Page 6



February 2021 incorporating the views of the respective select 
committees be received and the tabled response be endorsed for 
reporting to the Select Committee; 

 
2. Council Budget 2021-2022 

 
Having considered an officer report, and presentations by the Cabinet 
Member for Finance and Resources, Councillor Amanda De Ryk, the 
Chair of the Public Accounts Select Committee, Councillor Pat Codd 
and by Councillor Jacq Paschoud, the Mayor and Cabinet agreed in a 
recorded vote that: 
 
(1) the comments of the Public Accounts Select Committee of 2 
February 2021 be received and a minuted response be provided 
to the Select Committee and notes that Mayor and Cabinet 
decisions on the budget report will then be taken formally with 
the budget update report on the 10 February, 
 
(2) having considered the views of those consulted on the 
budget, and subject to consideration of the outcome of 
consultation with business ratepayers and subject to proper 
process, as required, the Mayor and Cabinet approved the 
following budgetary decisions:  
 
General Fund Revenue Budget  
 
2.3 notes and asks Council to note the projected overall 
variance of £3.2m (or 1.3%) against the agreed 2020/21 
revenue budget of £248.714m as set out in section 6 of this 
report and that any year-end overspend will be met from 
corporate reserves and provisions;  
 
2.4 endorses and asks Council to endorse the budget cut 
proposals of £28.016m as per the Mayor and Cabinet meetings 
of the 9 December 2020 and 3 February 2020, as set out in 
section 6 of the report and summarised in Appendix Y1 and Y2;  
 
2.5 agrees and asks Council to agree the allocation of £6.500m 
in 2021/22 be set aside and use of £1.500m reduced 
contribution for concessionary fares for corporate risks and 
pressures;   
 
2.6 agrees and asks Council to agree the allocation of £19.685m 
of corporate risks and pressures, social care precept, new 
homes bonus, social care grant, lower tier grant and legacy s31 
monies in 2021/22 to be invested in funding quantified budget 
pressures and opportunities, both recurring and once-off as set 
out in section 6;  
 
2.7 agrees to recommend to Council that a General Fund 

Page 7



Budget Requirement of £243.100m for 2021/22 be approved;  
 
2.8 asks Council to agree to a 4.99% increase in Lewisham’s 
Council Tax element. This will result in a Band D equivalent 
Council Tax level of £1,379.96 for Lewisham’s services and 
£1,743.62 overall. This represents an overall increase in Council 
Tax for 2021/22 of 5.91% and is subject to the GLA precept for 
2021/22 being increased by £31.59 (i.e. 9.5%) from £332.07 to 
£363.66, in line with the GLA’s draft budget proposals;  
 
2.9 notes and asks Council to note the Council Tax Ready 
Reckoner which for illustrative purposes sets out the Band D 
equivalent Council Tax at various levels of increase. This is 
explained in section 6 of the report and is set out in more detail 
in Appendix Y4;  
 
2.10 asks that the Executive Director for Corporate Resources 
issues cash limits to all Directorates once the 2021/22 Revenue 
Budget is agreed;  
 
2.11 notes that the Executive Director for Corporate Resources 
Section 25 Statement will be presented in the Budget Update 
Report on the 10 February 2021 for approval;  
 
2.12 agrees and asks Council to agree the draft statutory 
calculations for 2021/22 as set out at Appendix Y6;   
 
2.13 notes and asks Council to note the prospects for the 
revenue budget for 2021/22 and future years as set out in 
section 6;  
 
2.14 agrees and asks officers to continue to develop firm 
proposals to redesign and transform services and bring them 
forward in good time to support the work towards a cuts round to 
help plan early and meet the future forecast budget shortfalls;  
 
2.15 notes and endorses the Council’s withdrawal from the 
discontinued London Business Rates Pool for 2021/22.  
 
Other Grants (within the General Fund)  

 
2.16 notes and asks Council to note the adjustments to and 
impact of various specific grants for 2021/22 on the General 
Fund as set out in section 7 of this report;  
 
Fees and charges   
 
2.17 approves and endorses the approach to setting 2021/22 
fees and charges for chargeable services in section 8 of the 
report and attached at Appendix Y8;  

Page 8



 
Dedicated Schools Grant and Pupil Premium  
Schools Block  
2.18 note and recommends that Council notes that the 
provisional Dedicated Schools Grant allocation of £222.769m be 
the Schools’ Budget (Schools Block) for 2021/22;  
 
2.19 notes that following the Schools Forum meeting on the 19 
January, submission has been made to the Department for 
Education with regards to school funding formula, 
recommending the application of the National Funding Formula 
(including unit values) allowing for a 2% uplift in Minimum 
Funding Guarantee (MFG);   
 
2.20 notes that after the funding allocation to schools there is a 
one-off remaining amount of Dedicated Schools Grant of £2.3m 
for 2021/22;  
 
2.21 agrees and recommends that Council agrees, (as 
recommended by Schools Forum) the once-off transfer £1.068m 
of Dedicated Schools Grant to the High Needs Block and the set 
aside of £1.24m to support schools through measures such as 
the growth fund and the falling rolls fund;  
 
Central Schools Services Block (CSSB)  
2.22 notes, and asks Council to note, the construct and 
allocation of £4.261m for the CSSB block allocation for 2021/22;  
 
2.23 notes an increase of £2.65 per pupil unit resulting in a net 
increase of £68.7k in the “pupil-led” funding element of the 
block;  
 
High Needs Block (HNB)  
2.24 notes, and asks Council to note, the provisional High 
Needs Block £62.4m to support the Council’s statutory duty with 
regards Special Education Needs. This is a net increase of 
£5.99m relative to 2020/21;  
 
2.25 notes that the HNB is expected to overspend by between 
£4-5m in 2020/21;  
 
2.26 notes that the Schools Forum has agreed to transfer 
£1.068m to the block to support the Council to meet its statutory 
functions;  
 
Early Years Block (EYB)  
2.27 notes, and asks Council to note, the provisional Dedicated 
Schools Grant allocation of £24.17m to the block;   
 
2.28 notes that the Department for Education increase in 

Page 9



funding for “3 and 4 year old” from £5.70, to £5.76 (i.e. 6p per 
hour), and hourly rate for 2 year olds increase from £6.58 to 
£6.66 (i.e. 8p per hour) for 2021/22.  
 
2.29 notes that the maintained nursery supplementary funding 
allocation for September 2021 to March 2022 is subject to 
change and has not yet been finalised;  
 
Pupil Premium  

 
2.30 notes, and asks Council to note, that the pupil premium will 
continue in the 2021/22 financial year. The funding rates in the 
year will be same as 2020/21 but the census date has changed 
to January.  
 
Housing Revenue Account  
2.31 notes the consultation report on service charges to tenants’ 
and leaseholders in the Brockley area, presented to area panel 
members on 16 December 2020, as attached at Appendix X2;   
 
2.32 notes the consultation report on service charges to tenants’ 
and leaseholders and the Lewisham Homes budget strategy 
presented to area panel members on 17 December 2020 as 
attached at Appendix X3;  
 
2.33 sets an increase in dwelling rents of 1.5% (an average of 
£1.46 per week) – as per the formula rent calculations outlined 
in section 9 of this report;  
 
2.34 sets an increase in the hostels accommodation charge by 
1.5% (or £0.53 per week), in accordance with formula rent 
calculations;  
 
2.35 approves the following average weekly 
increases/decreases for dwellings for:  
 
2.35.1 service charges to non-Lewisham Homes managed 
dwellings (Brockley) to ensure full cost recovery and 2.1% 
inflationary uplift for 2021/22;  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
2.35.2 service charges to Lewisham Homes managed dwellings:  

taking 1.99% (£0.13)  
 

 

Page 10



 
 
 

 
 

lk waste disposal 0.00% (£0.00)  
 

 
2.36 approves the following average weekly percentage 
changes for hostels and shared temporary units for;  

– caretaking etc.; no change  
s for heat, light & power; no change  

  
 
2.37 approves an increase in garage rents by 1.1% (£0.17 per 
week) for Brockley and Lewisham Homes residents;  
 
2.38 notes that the budgeted expenditure for the Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA) for 2021/22 is £226.1m, split £112.1m 
revenue and £114.0m capital, which includes the decent homes 
and new build programmes;  
 
2.39 agrees the HRA budget strategy cut proposals in order to 
achieve a balanced budget in 2021/21, as attached at Appendix 
X1;   
 
2.40 agrees to write off forty-one cases of Former Tenants’ 
Arrears as set out in section 9 and Appendix X7, totalling 
£655,329.76;  
 
Treasury Management Strategy  
2.41 approves and recommends that Council approves the 
prudential indicators and treasury indicators, as set out in 
section 10 of this report;   
 
2.42 approves and recommends that Council approves the 
Annual Investment Strategy and Creditworthiness Policy, set out 
in further detail at Appendix Z2;  
 
2.43 approves and recommends that Council approves the 
update to the Investment Strategy as set out in section 10 of this 
report, namely to allow investment in UK building societies with 
a minimum credit rating of BBB- from Fitch (or equivalent) for up 
to 3 months, and no more than £10m per institution;  
 
2.44 notes and asks Council to note that the Capital Strategy 
2021/22 will be brought forward during the year;  
 
2.45 approves and recommends that Council approves the 
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy as set out in section 

Page 11



10 of this report;  
 
2.46 agrees and recommends that Council agrees to delegate to 
the Executive Director of Corporate Resources authority during 
2021/22 to make amendments to borrowing and investment 
limits provided they are consistent with the strategy and there is 
no change to the Council’s authorised limit for borrowing;  
 
2.47 approves and recommends that Council approves the 
overall credit and counterparty risk management criteria, as set 
out at Appendix Z2, the proposed countries for investment at 
Appendix Z3, and that it formally delegates responsibility for 
managing transactions with those institutions which meet the 
criteria to the Executive Director for Corporate Resources;  
 
2.48 approves and recommends that Council approves a 
minimum sovereign rating of AA-for non-UK investments;  
 
Capital Programme  
2.49 notes the 2020/21 Quarter 3 Capital Programme monitoring 
position and the Capital Programme potential future schemes 
and resources as set out in section 11 of this report;  
 
2.50 notes the significant proposed rise in prudential borrowing 
of more than £275m by 2023/24, primarily to fund the Building 
for Lewisham programme capital plans;  
 
2.51 recommends that Council approves the 2021/22 to 2023/24 
Capital Programme of £517.5m, as set out in section 11 of this 
report and attached at Appendices W1 and W2.  

 
 
 
 
 
Kim Wright 
Chief Executive,  
Lewisham Town Hall,  
Catford SE6 4RU  
4 February 2020 

Page 12


	Agenda
	1 Declarations of Interests
	2 Decisions Made by Mayor & Cabinet on 3 February 2021 - open session

